
United Nations THIRD COMMiml, 598th GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 

NINTH SESSION 
Of!icial Records • 

MEETING 

Tuesday, 30 November 1954, 
at 10.45 a.m. 

CONTENTS 

Page 

Agenda item 12: 
Report of the Economic and Social Council (chapters 

IV and V) ( cvntin11ed) • . • . . . • . . . . • • . . • . .. . .. • .. • • 285 

Chairman: Mr. J in NOSEK. ( Czeehoelovak:ia). 

AGENDA ITEM 12 

Report of the Economic and Social Conncil (chap· 
ters IV and V) (A/2686, AjC.3jL.444) (con
tinued) 

UNIVERSAL CHILDREN'S DAY (AjC.3jL.444) 
(continued) 

1. The CHAIRMAN drew the Committee's attention 
to the amendments to the joint draft resolution (A/ 
C.3/L.444) accepted by the Indian and Uruguayan 
representatives at the 597th meeting and to the oral 
amendments to operative paragraph 3 proposed by the 
Australian and Saudi Arabian representatives. 
2. Mr. KUEHN (France) proposed that a reference 
to the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cul
tural Organization should be included in paragraph 3 
of the operative part, since that was the agency most 
concerned with education. A suggestion the Executive 
Director of the United Nations Children's Fund had 
made at the preceding meeting might be incorporated. 
The paragraph would then read : 

"Requests the Executive Board of UNICEF, in 
co-operation with UNESCO, to take steps in ac
cordance with this resolution and to include in its 
annual reports a report on the progress achieved. 

3. Mr. MATTHEW (India) said that he was pre
pared to accept the Australian oral amendment to opera
tive paragraph 3 for the deletion of "and to report 
progress to the General Assembly at its tenth session" 
and for the addition of a new paragraph, which would 
be paragraph 4, to read: 

"Requests the Executive Board of UNICEF to 
include in its annual reports a report on progress 
achieved in accordance with the above recom
mendations." 

4. He preferred to retain the reference to the In
ternational Union for Child VVelfare in the fifth para
graph of the preamble, but did not regard it as indis
pensable. If any amendment for its deletion was 
adopted, he would still vote for the amended resolution. 
5. He would accept the French proposal for a reference 
to collaboration with UNESCO, but he could not ac
cept the second French amendment, which would to 

New York 

some extent reduce the importance of the resolution. 
The Secretary-General was normally asked to perform 
such work; to ask the Executive Board of UNICEF 
alone would be to reduce the significance of the 
resolution. 
6. Mr. KUEHN (France) said that he could not 
agree that his second amendment would reduce the 
importance of the resolution. The request would come 
from the General Assembly, the highest organ of the 
United Nations. He had merely been reproducing an 
idea put forward by the Executive Director of 
UNICEF. 
7. Mrs. CISELET (Belgium) said that the draft reso
lution had been greatly improved by the amendments 
accepted, especially the French and Australian amend
ments. She asked whether the Uruguayan representative 
had accepted all the amendments agreed to by the In
dian representative. 
8. Mr. RODRIGUEZ FABREGAT (Uruguay) re
plied that he had accepted the insertion of the word 
"social" in the fourth paragraph of the preamble, 
mainly at the Guatemalan representative's request; the 
deletion of the word "shall" in operative paragraph I, as 
proposed by the Swedish representative; the substitution 
of "invites" for "urges" in operative paragraph 2, as 
proposed by the Saudi Arabian representative; and the 
Australian amendment to operative paragraph 3 and for 
the addition of a new paragraph 4. He would prefer to 
retain the reference to the International Union for Child 
Welfare. It was true that there were a number of similar 
organizations to which reference might also be made, 
but several delegations had favoured retaining that 
particular reference. It would be only fair to UNESCO 
to insert a reference to it, as the French representative 
proposed, although it should be clear that UNESCO 
should not be asked to report on progress as well as 
UNICEF. The United Nations Children's Fund had its 
own sphere of competence, but the views of UNESCO 
would undoubtedly he usefuL 

285 

9. Mr. KING (Liberia) thought that the reference to 
an International World Children's Day in operative 
paragraph 1 was confusing in view of the fact that 
Governments were asked in paragraph 2 to choose 
their own most appropriate date. The Costa Rican 
amendment (A/C.3jL.445) seemed to be based on the 
idea that there should be a single Children's Day. There 
was no mention of an international day in operative 
paragraph 2. He had gathered that the sponsors had 
originally thought of a single day. 
10. Mr. RODRIGUEZ FABREGAT (Uruguay) re
plied that it should be obvious that what the sponsors 
had had in mind was a single Universal Children's Day. 
That did not mean that the date was to be set at that 
session. The draft resolution as it stood m\ght be re
garded as a first stage; the second stage, the setting of 
a special day, could be discussed when UNICEF had 

A/C.3/SR.S98 



286 Gent ral Asscmbly-NiDth Scasioo- Thircl Committee 

presented its report. The feeling of the celebration, on 
whatever date it fell, would be urivcrsal, embracing 
at! the children in the world, not merely those of the 
country in which it was held. Othe >vise, there would 
be no point in the United Nations' intervening, when 
a great many countries already bad t} cir own Children's 
Days. He would press for the establishment of a single 
universal day when the Ut\ICEF re X>rt was discussed 
at the next session of the General Assembly. 
11. Mr. MATTHEW (India) agreed with the 
U ruguayan representative. A single !et day would have 
been desirable, but it was not feasible. But each coun
try would have its own World Chil1ren's Day, inter
national in feeling and scope. 
12. Mr. NU~EZ (Costa Rica) ~aid that the ref
erence to World Children's Day in hi s amendment (A/ 
C.3 /L.445) appeared to have give 1 rise to certain 
objections which were not really just'fied. It was not a 
reference to a specific day but to the concept of such a 
day, a concept which had had to be! modified by the 
considerations guiding operative pa1-agraph 2 of the 
draft resolution (A/C.3/L.444). ~ ~he central idea 
remained valid. The phrase referrin1 ~ to World Chil
dren's Day was qualified by the word "preferably" and 
obviously was not an attempt to set a definite date. The 
Executive Director of UNICEF hac indicated at the 
preceding meeting that UNICEF wotld find a pledging 
conference useful, so that any objectious to the reference 
to W orld Children's Day should not be a reason for 
rejecting the amendment as a whole. 
13. Miss AMMUNDSEN (Denmark), speaking on 
behalf of her own country, Norw ty and Sweden, 
thanked the sponsors of the joint draft resolution (A/ 
C.3/ L.444) for their co-operative atti1Ude. 
14. The new operative paragraph 4 proposed by the 
Australian delegation (597th meetirg) was entirely 
acceptable, but Denmark would vote a1:ainst the Afghan 
amendment to the fifth paragraph of t 1e preamble (A/ 
C.3/ L.446, point 1). However, it w<·uld still support 
the draft resolution as a whole, even if the Afghan 
amendment were adopted. 
15. It would vote against the Costa Rican amendments 
(A/C.3/L.445) for the reasons already explained by 
other delegations. 
16. Mrs. ELLIOT (United Kingdom) stated that the 
United Kingdom would vote for the joint draft resolu
tion (A/C.3/L.444) but against tlte Costa Rican 
amendments (A/C.3/L.445) for the nasons explained 
by the F rench representative ( 597th mc:eting) . She sup
ported the French proposal (597th neeting) to re
place the words "on the initiative of 1 he International 
Union for Child Welfare" in the la;t paragraph of 
the pteamble by the words "on the initiative of cer
tain non-governmental organizations". Her support for 
that proposal should not be construe•! as a criticism 
of the International Union for Child Welfare, for 
which she had great admiration, but sl .e felt that men
tion of a non-governmental organizatiou by name might 
create a d:mgerous precedent. The (."nited Kingdom 
would support the joint draft resolution with or without 
that amendment. 
17. Mr. HUMPHREY (Secretariat) stated that the 
Secretary-General attached considerabk importance to 
the suggestion made by the Executive I::irector of UNI
CEF at the 597th meeting, and formally moved by the 
French representative at the current m!eting, to delete 

the reference to the Secretary-General from paragraph 
3 of the operative part of the joint draft resolution (A/ 
C.3/L.444 ) . The Executive Board of UNICEF would 
thus be responsible for taking steps under the resolution 
and reportiug progress. The Secretary-General's posi
tion was based on hroad administrative considerations, 
among which was the fact that the initiatives he was 
required lo take under the resolution would make it 
difficult to avoid having Children's Day become an
other United Nations Day. That could not but detract 
{rom the effectiveness of United Nations Day and Hu
man Rights Day, and could be avoided entirely if the 
responsibility were placed on UNICEF. The Secretary
General hoped that the French proposal would be ac
cepted by the sponsors of the draft resolution and the 
Committee. 
18. Mrs. TSALDARJS (Greece) said that she could 
not support the Afghan amendment (A/C.3/L.446). 
The International Union for Child Welfare had special
ized in child welfare for the past thirty years. It worked 
through national organizations and had 1n effect acted 
as a specialized agency before the establishment of 
UNICEF. For that reason, some reference should be 
made to it, and the Greek delegation would vote in 
favour of inclusion of a reference to the International 
Union for 0 1ild Welfare particularly as that organiza
tion had already instituted a World Children's Day. 
She could not support the Costa Rican amendments 
( A/C.3/L.445), since she had not received any In

structions from her Government. 
19. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan ) moved the 
closure of the debate under rule 118 of the rules of 
procedure. 

The motion was adopted by 29 votes to 7 with 15 
abstentions. ' 

20. Mr. KING (Liberia) explained that he had voted 
against the motion for closure of the debate as he would 
have liked to hear from the sponsors of the joint draft 
resolution ( A/C.3/L.444) whether they intended 
World Children's Day to be observed on the same date 
in every country. 
21. Mr. RODRIGUEZ FABREGAT (Uruguay) 
said that he would have preferred the debate to con
tinue. The idea of a pledging conference for UNICEF 
funds contained in the Costa Rican amendment (A/ 
C.3/L.445, point 2) had a precedent in the similar con
ference for technical assistance funds, and it had been 
welcomed by the Executive Director of UNICEF. The 
Executive Board of UN ICEF might be asked to report 
on the possibility of such an arrangement. The records 
of the Third Committee's debate should be forwarded 
to th~ Executive Board to help it in considering the 
question. 
22. Mrs. CISELET (Belgium) did not oppose the 
prin~ipl<; of the Costa Rican amendment but, lacking 
spectfic mstructions from her Government, she was un
able to vote for it. 
23. She supported the joint draft resolution including 
the amendment proposed by France to operative para
graph 3. 
24. Mrs. HARMAN (Israel) regretted that she was 
unable to vote for the Costa Rican amendment (A/ 
C.3/ L.445, point 2) as it stood, since it was not con
sistent with p:uagraph 2 of the operative part of the 
draft resolution ( A/C.3/L.444), but she fully endorsed 
the idea of a pledging conference, the possibilities of 



598th meeting-30 November 1954 287 

which should be thoroughly explored by the Executive 
Board of UNICEF. 
25. She asked for a separate vote on the words "pref
erably on World Children's Day'', in sub-para
graph (a) of the amendment, which would enable her 
delegation to vote for it. 
26. Mr. KUEHN (France) said that he had voted 
against the motion for closure of the debate since he 
did not yet know whether the amendment to the last 
paragraph of the preamble he had suggested at the 
597th meeting had been accepted. 
27. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) explained that he 
could not accept the French amendment unless the 
words "on the initiative of certain non-governmental 
organizations" replaced the words "on the initiative of 
the International Union for Child W e!fare in associa
tion with UNICEF". 
28. Mr. JOHNSON (United States of America) op
posed any reference to the International Union for 
Child Welfare in the draft resolution. Although he had 
the highest regard for the Union's work, that would 
create an undesirable precedent. 
29. Mrs. RoSSEL (Sweden) asked for a separate vote 
on the words "the Secretary-General in association 
with" in paragraph 3 of the operative part of the resolu
tion (A/C.3/L.444). 
30. The CHAIRMAN put the Afghan amendment to 
the fifth paragraph of the preamble (A/C.3/L.446, 
point 1) to the vote. 

The amendment was adopted by 28 votes to 7, with 
18 abstentions. 
31. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the French 
oral amendment calling for the deletion of the words 
"the Secretary-General in association with" in para
graph 3 of the operative part of the draft resolution 
(A/C.3/L.444). 

The amendment was adopted by 51 votes to none, 
with 2 abstenti.ons. 
32. Mr. FARQUHAR (Iran) and Mrs. ELLIOT 
(United Kingdom) asked what effect the possible 
adoption of the French oral amendment to paragraph 
3 of the operative part would have on the new para
graph (paragraph 4) accepted by the sponsors as the 
result of an Australian proposal. 
33. Mr. RAJ AN (India) said that he wished to main
tain paragraph 4 of the operative part. 

34. Mr. KUEHN (France) withdrew his oral amend
ment. 
35. Mr. FOMIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) did not consider that the text of operative para
graph 3 as it stood made it clear what steps the Execu
tive Board was to take, since no active measures within 
its terms of reference were proposed in the draft resolu
tion. It might be better to reconsider the French oral 
amendment. 

36. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) thought that the 
request to the Board was quite clear. Paragraph 1 of the 
operative part contained a recommendation for the in
stitution of a Children's Day, and paragraph 2 contained 
certain suggestions to Governments. The Board would 
take the steps it deemed necessary and report on the 
progress achieved. The situation might be clarified if 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the operative part were combined 
to read as follows: 

"Requests the Executive Board of the United Na
tions Children's Fund, in co-operation with the United 
Xations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Or
ganization, to take steps in accordance with this reso
lution and to include in its annual reports a report 
on progress achieved in accordance with the above 
recommendations.'' 

37. Mr. RODRIGUEZ FABREGAT (Uruguay) and 
Mr. RAJAN (India) considered that, since the purpose 
of the draft resolution was to express the concern of the 
United Nations for the children of the world, UNICEF, 
as the United Nations organ dealing with children, would 
take the steps it considered appropriate. It was not 
for the Third Committee to decide the precise nature 
of the steps. 

38. They accepted the Afghan suggestion to combine 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the operative part. 

39. Mr. KUEHN (France) pointed out that the 
amended text was practically identical with the oral 
amendment he had withdrawn. 

40. The CHAIRMAN put the Costa' Rican amend
ments (A/C.3/L.445) to the vote. 

Point 1 of the anwndments was adopted by 18 votes 
to 13, u>ith 21 abstentions. 

The phrase "preferably on World Children's Day" in 
point 2 of the amendments was rejected by 19 votes to 
8, 'With 23 abstentions. 

Point 2 of the an~endments, as amended, was rejected 
by 25 votes to 14, 'With 14 abstentions. 

41. Mr. KUEHN (France) suggested that another 
vote might be taken on the Costa Rican amendment to 
the preamble, since the Costa Rican representative had 
said that the two amendments were dependent on each 
other. 

42. Mr. NUNEZ (Costa Rica) considered that it 
would be advisable to retain the paragraph, which ex
pressed the General Assembly's desire to support UNI
CEF by specific measures and implied that Governments 
would do so by contributing to UNICEF. His delega
tion would submit a draft resolution on the subject to 
the General Assembly at its tenth session. 

43. The CHAIRMAN put the joint draft resolution 
( A/C.3/L.444), as a whole, as amended, to the vote. 

The draft resolution as a whole, as amended, was 
adopted by 47 votes to none, with 4 abstentions. 

44. Miss DE VINK (Netherlands) explained that she 
had abstained from voting on the draft resolution as a 
whole because, although her Government was in favour 
of promoting world-wide fraternity and understanding 
between children, it did not feel called upon to take any 
position in what was, in its opinion, the task of the 
private organizations in her country. She had voted for 
the Afghan and French amendments because she con
sidered that they improved the text and against the 
Costa Rican amendments because they were out of place 
in the resolution. 

45. Mr. DUNLOP (New Zealand) explained that he 
had abstained from voting on the draft resolution be
cause he would have preferred the institution of a Chil
dren's Day to have been left to the discretion of agencies 
and organizations working in various countries. He could 
not commit his Government to instituting such a Day 
in New Zealand or to persuading national organizations 



288 General Assembly-Ninth Seuion-Third Committee 

to do so. Those organizations might vrell feel that educa
tional activities for international co-<•peration would be 
best conducted in connexion with United Nations Day 
or Human Rights Day. The celebrat .on of a Children's 

Printed in U.S.A. 

Day in New Zealand might entail a complicated and pos
sibly disadvantageous reorganization of activities which 
were highly successful under existing arrangements. 

The meeting rose at 1.20 p.m. 

S-42051-January 1955-1,850 




